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The Judge William A. Wilson House is located on Fairburn Road approxi-
mately 500 feet from Southwest Community Hospital. The nominated property in-
cludes fifteen acres of land,

The Wilson House is a two~story Greek Revival structure that was built
over a period of three years, 1856~59. The exterior walls are constructed of
fieldstone and mortar. The width of the walls 1s graduated, being approxi-
mately thirty-five inches at the base of the wall and tapering to approxi-
mately eighteen inches at the top of the wall. The two-story portico with a
second-floor porch was removed in the early 1960s when a two-story frame addi-
tion was constructed on the foundations of the portico. The original front
door, now located in the addition, has an overlight and sidelights. Two win-
dows are located on each side of the frent door. A second-story front doorway,
once leading to the second-story porch, is exactly like the first-floor door-
vay. Second-floor windows are found above the first-floor windows. Four win-
dows are located-on each floor of the sides of the structure. A screened porch
i1s located on the rear of the structure.

The interior floor plan is the typical Greek Revival floor plan: a central
stair hall with four rooms on each floor, Other Greek Revival features are
noted in the molding around the doorways and windows and the high ceilings.

The newel post and handrail have been removed, but the owners know where they
are presently located,

Although the house is in a deteriorated condition, the owners have taken
measures to prevent further deterioration. The windows have been boarded up
to prevent further vandalism and the shutters and the mantels have been re~
moved for protection. The original portico is utilized in a residential
structure owned by John Cash, IIT, a direct descendent of the Wilson family.

The family cemetery is located southwest of the Wilson House. The bullder
of the Wilsen House, William A. Wilson, and members of the Wilson family are
buried in the cemetery. The graves of several of the Wilson family slaves are
located on the edge of the cemetery. They are marked by small stones.

Once located on the property was a detached kitchen and several slave
cabins. The kitchen was located southwest of the Wilson House., Suffering
from deterioration, the kitchen was demolished in the 1960s. A garden was once
located behind the kitchen with chicken coops adjacent. The slave cabins were
located directly south of the Wilson House, but their exact location is unknown.

The main road that served the Wilson House in the 1800s was located in
front of the structure. The original route can still be discerned in the wooded
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area. Portions of the original landscaping are still visible. Four large
cedar trees are located near the house.

Wilson family plantation is no longer intact due to subdivision of the
property. The nominated property, fifteen acres, was chosen to include struc-
tures and sites that are known to have been associated with the Wilson House.
Today, the environment reflects the suburban growth that has occurred in the
area, Much of the property immediately surrounding the Wilson House is now
forested or overgrown.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Judge William A. Wilson House 1s significant to the architectural and
local history of Atlanta. The Wilson House is of an unusual construction type
found in the Atlanta area and is one of the few remaining antebellum houses in
the area. Judge Wilson was an active leader in the community affairs of Atlanta
and Fulton County. The Wilson House served as a temporary headquarters for
Union troops during the campaign eof Atlanta during the Civil War.

Architecturally, the Wilson House is significant due to its unusual method
of construction and that it is one of few remaining antebellum houses in Atlanta.
The exterior walls are constructed of fieldstone and mortar that has been stuc-
coed. The walls are reported to have been constructed by pouring the materials
into a form. The house was built partially with slave labor. Although in a de-
teriorated condition, the Wilson House is an architectural resource in that it
is an example of a typical four-over-four Greek Revival house. Characteristics
of the Greek Revival architecture are noted in the massive molding and the
floor plan: a four-over-four design with a large central hall. Since it is one
of a few antebellum houses in the Atlanta area that survived the Civil War, it
is significant to our understanding of antebellum structures and methods of con-
struction in the Atlanta area.

Judge Wilson (1824~1903) was the youngest son of James William and Mary
Leake Wilson, early settlers in the Atlanta area. William Wilson acquired ap-
proximately 1,200 acres from his father in 1839. This became one of the largest
plantations in the area prior to the Civil War. It was on this land that Judge
Wilson began constructien of his house in 1856. Constructed partially by slave
laber, the house teok three years to cemplete.

At the outbreak of the Civil War, Wilson took his wife, Sarah Amanda Glass
Wilson, to Covington to her family home and he returned to Fulton County to en-
list in the 38th Regiment, Georgia Volunteer Infantry. He served in this unit
for the duration of the war. In August, 1864, the Wilson House was directly
in the line of a Federal flanking movement designed to cut railroad lines lead-
ing into Atlanta and thus quicken the surrender of the city. Federal troops
camped on Wilson land during a month-long seriles of skirmishes known as the
Battle of Utoy Creek. According to Wilson family tradition, General William
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Tecumseh Sherman used the Wilson House as a temporary headquarters during the
last week of August, when the Federal forces finally destroyed the two remain-
ing rail lines to Atlanta. On September 2, 1864, the city of Atlanta sur-
rendered to the Federal forces. Before the troops left the Wilson property,
they gave the Wilson House to the overseer, who was reluctant to return the
house to Wilson after the war.

After termination of the Civil War, Judge Wilson became active in the
community affairs of Atlanta and Fulton County. In addition to serving as a
justice of the inferior court in Fulton County for the years 1857-61, he was
a representative in the Georgia General Assembly for the 1875-76 session. He
was a charter member of the Bethel Methodist Church of Adamsville, where he
served in the Sunday school department as superintendent. His home was the
center of social and community gatherings. The Adamsville Masonic Lodge was
formed and chartered in the Wilson House. Wilson served as sheriff of Fulton
County for the 1877-81 term.

Sarah Wilson died in 1869, and Judge Wilson married Emma Loyd (1843-1912)
of Virginia in the early 1870s. Judge Wilson died on March 27, 1903, The
Wilson House remained in the family until 1962 when Dr. Thomas N. Guffin,
great grandson of the builder, sold the property to the Holy Family Hospdital.
The house was converted into a nurses’ quarters for the Sisters who staffed
the hospital. The house has been vacant for several years. Southwest Com-
munity Hospital, formerly Holy Family Hospital, plans to restore the property
and use it as a community center.

No formal archaeology has been reported for the nominated property. Know-
ledge of previous structures is available through maps and oral family tradi-
tion. The kitchen and slave houses andother necessary structures were impor-
tant facets of the Wilson House and the events that occurred on the property.
An understanding of the property could be gained from an archaeological study
of the nominated property.

The nomination for the Wilson House is sponsored by the Friends of South-
west Community Hospital, a volunteer supportive organization of the hospital.
The organization plans to preserve the structure and use it as a community
center.
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